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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FMS. HRC)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. NORT 78-417-P
PETI TI ONER A/ O No. 44-00280- 02025
V. Canmp Branch No. 1 M ne

CLI NCHFI ELD COAL COVPANY,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Inga Watkins, Esqg., Trial Attorney, Ofice of the
Solicitor, Departnent of Labor, for Petitioner
Gary W Callahan, Esq., Attorney for Respondent.

Bef or e: Chief Admi nistrative Law Judge Broderick
Statenent of the Case

Thi s proceedi ng was conmenced on Septenber 25, 1978, by a
petition for the assessnent of a civil penalty filed under
section 110(a) of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977,
30 U.S.C. [0820(a), seeking a penalty for an alleged violation of
t he provisions of 30 CFR 77. 207.

Fol | owi ng di scussi ons between counsel pursuant to a
prehearing order, the case was called for hearing on the nerits
on January 25, 1979, in Abingdon, Virginia. Carence A (Goode, a
Federal mne inspector, testified on behalf of Petitioner; Ceorge
W Strong, superintendent of the subject mne, testified on
behal f of Respondent. Both parties have filed posthearing briefs.
Al'l proposed findings and conclusions contained in the briefs not
adopted herein are rejected.

Regul ati on

30 CFR 77.207 provides: "lllumnation sufficient to provide
saf e working conditions shall be provided in and on all surface
structures, paths, wal kways, stairways, switch panels, |oading
and dunping sites and working areas."
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| ssues

1. Wiether there was any illumnation in the areas covered
by the citation involved herein in addition to the cap | anps of
the m ners and i nspector.

2. Whether the illumination in the areas covered by the
citation was sufficient to provide safe working conditions.

3. If a violation has been established, what is the
appropriate penalty?

Fi ndi ngs of Fact

1. At all tinmes relevant to this proceedi ng, Respondent,
Ainchfield Coal Conpany, was the operator of a coal mine in
Di ckenson County, Virginia, known as the Canp Branch No. 1 M ne.

2. Respondent is a large operator and any penalty assessed
herein will not affect its ability to continue in business.

3. On Septenber 19, 1977, Federal M ne |nspector Goode nade
an inspection of the subject mne, including both underground and
surface areas.

4. Inspector Goode's inspection of the surface areas was
conduct ed between 9:30 and 11 p.m on Septenber 19. The ni ght was
cl oudy.

5. I nspector Goode had previously inspected the m ne on
Sept enber 16, 1977, during daylight hours and did not observe
light structures in the area of the head house and stacker belt.
He returned on Septenber 19 at night to determ ne the
illumnation in the area.

6. On Septenber 19, 1977, at approximately 11 p.m,
I nspect or Goode issued Notice of Violation No. 4 CAG charging a
violation of 30 CFR 77. 207.

7. At the tine the citation referred to in Finding No. 6 was
i ssued, there were no functioning outside lights at or near the
head house or the conveyors |eading fromthe head house to the
stacker transfer point.

Di scussi on

There is sharp and total disagreenment between M. Goode and
M. Strong as to the existence of functioning lights at the tine
and place referred to in the notice. | am accepting the testinony
of M. Goode, because he was present at the tine in question, and
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M. Strong was not. M. Sam Miurphy, m ne foreman, who acconpani ed
M. Goode on his inspection, was not called as a w tness by
Respondent. M. Goode's testinony is cooroborated by the notes
whi ch he made at the tinme of his inspection. M. Goode is an
experienced mne inspector. There is no adequate reason shown in
this record to conclude that he was totally m staken or was
fabricating as to the condition he stated that he observed.

8. Because of the absence of functioning lights in the areas
described in Finding No. 7, illumnation sufficient to provide
saf e worki ng conditions was not provided in those areas.

Di scussi on

The only illumination in the areas in question was that
provided by the cap | anps of the mners and the inspector. The
area in question had supplies, railroad tracks, rocks and coa
spi | Il age which constituted stunbling hazards. There were novi ng
conveyors and noving parts at the transfer point and the stacker
belt which could be hazardous to those working in and around
them if insufficiently illum nated. The cap | anps did not
provide sufficient illum nation to obviate these hazards since
the cap lanp provides only a directed beam of |ight and does not
provide diffuse illumnation to allow a person to see to the
peri phery of his vision. | reject the testinmony of M. Strong
that "the cap |ight provides adequate illumnation for a man
wor ki ng al ong one of these conveyors" (Tr. 81).

9. At the tinme the notice of violation was issued, there was
one mner working in the area in question. However, the area was
travel ed by other mners to pick up supplies and to do
mai nt enance and cl eanup work al ong the belt.

10. The condition described in Finding No. 8 was noderately
seri ous.

11. Respondent's history of previous violations does not
i ncl ude any violations of 30 CFR 77.207. Any penalty assessed
herein will not be increased because of a history of previous
vi ol ati ons.

12. The parties stipul ated that Respondent denonstrated good
faith in attenpting to effect rapid conpliance after the notice
was i ssued.

13. The absence of illumnation in the areas in question was
di scussed with Respondent's officials prior to the date the
noti ce was i ssued. Respondent knew or shoul d have known of the
exi stence of the condition described in Finding No. 8. Respondent
was negligent.
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Concl usi ons of Law

1. Respondent was subject to the provisions of the Coal M ne
Heal th and Safety Act of 1969, 30 U. . S.C. 0801 et seq., as of
Sept enber 19, 1977.

2. The undersigned Admi nistrative Law Judge has jurisdiction
over the parties and the subject matter of this proceedi ng.

3. The condition described in Finding No. 8 constituted a
violation of the mandatory safety standard contained in 30 CFR
77.207.

4. A violation of the safety standard in 30 CFR 77.207 can
be established without reference to specific illumnation
nmeasur enents such as footcandles of |ight.

Penal ty

Considering the criteria in section 109(a) of the 1969 Act,
I conclude that a penalty of $150 is appropriate for the
viol ation.

Therefore, it is ORDERED t hat Respondent shall pay a civil
penalty in the anopunt of $150 for the violation on Septenber 19,
1977, of 30 CFR 77.207. The penalty shall be paid within 30 days
of the date of this decision

James A. Broderick
Chi ef Administrative Law Judge



